= Chartered Accountants
De‘o‘tte 7" Floor, Building 10, Tower B
. DLF Cyber City Complex
Haskins & SellsLLP
Gurugram - 122 002
Haryana, India

Tel: +91 124 679 2000
Fax: +91 124 679 2012

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Apolio Metalex Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Apollo Metalex Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes In Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indlan
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its
profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the ycar cnded
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s report and annexure to the Board’s report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board's report and
annexure to the Board’s report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board’s report and annexure to the Board’s report, if we conclude that there is
a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other
Information’.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
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evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

On account of the COVID-19 related lock-down restrictions, management performed the year end
physical verification of inventories, subsequent to end of the year at all plants. We were not able
to physically observe the verification of inventory that was carried out by the Management.
Consequently, we have performed alternate procedures to audit the existence of Inventory as per
the guidance provided by in SA 501 “Audit Evidence - Specific Considerations for Selected Items”
and have obtained sufficient audit evidence to issue our unmodified opinion on these financial
statements. Our opinion on the financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
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reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 33(a) to the notes forming part
of the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Note 33(b)(3) to the
notes forming part of the financial statements.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company - Refer Note 33(c) to the notes
forming part of the financial statements.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Chartered
Accountants
I
.@’7_
(RASHIM TANDON)
(Partner)
Place: New Delhi (Membership No. 95540)

Date: June 30, 2020 (UDIN: 20095540AAAAAR1629)
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Apollo Metalex Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company; (2) provide reasonable
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

—_—

(RASHIM TANDON)

(Partner)
Place: New Delhi (Membership No. 95540)
Date: June 30, 2020 (UDIN: 20095540AAAAAR1629)



Deloitte

Haskins & Sells LLP

“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

In respect of its Fixed Assets (Property, Plant and Equipment):

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides
for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to
the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined
by us, Immovable properties of land and buildings whose conveyance deed/lease
deeds have been pledged as security for loans, are held in the name of the Company
based on the confirmations directly received by us from lenders. In respect of
immovable properties of land and buildings that have been taken on lease and
disclosed as right to use in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in
the name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

As explained to us, the inventories (excluding goods in transit) were physically verified
during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies
were noticed on physical verification. Inventories in transit, were verified by the
Management based on subsequent receipts.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provide guarantees and
hence reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposit during the year. The Company does not have unclaimed deposits, therefore
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
cost records have been made and maintained We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax,
Customs Duty, Cess with the appropriate authorities and there are no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of these dues outstanding as at March 31, 2020 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. Also refer to
the Note 33(a)(3) to the financial statements regarding management assessment



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP

on certain matters relating to the provident fund. The operations of the Company
didn’t give rise to Excise duty.

(b) Details of dues of Value Added Tax and Excise Duty, which have not been deposited
as on March 31, 2020 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Nature of Forum where Period to Amount Amount
Statute Dues Dispute is which the Involved Unpaid
Pending Amount (In Rupees | (In Rupees
Relates Crores) Crores)
Uttar Value Added | Commercial Tax | 2008-09 0.41 0.41
Pradesh Tax Tribunal,
Value Ghaziabad
Added Tax | Value Added | Commercial Tax | 2009-10 0.19 0.19
Act, 2008 Tax Tribunal,
Ghaziabad 1
Value Added | Additional 2014-15 0.08 -
Tax Commissioner
Grade-2 (Appeal)
Value Added | Additional 2015-16 0.31 0.02
Tax Commissioner
Grade-2 (Appeal)
Value Added | Additional 2016-17 0.63 0.56
Tax Commissioner
Grade-2 (Appeal)
Central Excise High Court of [ 2011-12 5.70 5.70
Excise Act, Allahabad and 2012-
1944 13
Excise High Court of | 2010-11 4.58 4.58
Allahabad and 2011-
12
Excise CESTAT, 2011-12 0.38 0.36
Allahabad

We have been informed that there are no other dues of Income Tax, Goods and Services
Tax and Custom Duty which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2020 on account of
disputes.

(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company has not
taken any loans or borrowings from government or financial institution and the Company
has not issued any debentures.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they
were raised. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments).

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013.
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO
2016 Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company
is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable,
for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv)
of CARO 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Chartered

Accountants

—_—

(RASHIM TANDON)
(Partner)

Place: New Delhi (Membership No. 95540)
Date: June 30, 2020 (UDIN: 20095540AAAAAR1629)



APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

Particulars

I. ASSETS

(1)
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Right of use assets

Other intangible assets
Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets

(f) Non-current tax assets (net)
(g) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

(2)
(a)
(b)

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Loans

(iv) Other financial assets
Other current assets

Total current assets

()

Total Assets
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1)

(a)
(b)

Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

(2)
()

(b)
(c)
(d)

(3)
(a)

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
and small enterprises

(iii) Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Provisions

Total current liabilities

(b)
()

Total Equity and Liabilities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

—

RASHIM TANDON
Partner
Membership No. 95540

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 30, 2020

Chartered

Accountants

Notes

2(a)

40
2(b)

[e)) ulPh W

—
=T -cRN

12(a)
12(b)

17
18

As at

March 31, 2020

(Rupees in crore)
As at
March 31, 2019

200.44 160.85
0.80 4.72
23.88 =
0.01 0.01
3.07 3.03
1.19 0.66
1.71 28.14
231.10 197.41
82.99 62.57
66.78 102.03
0.27 0.12
0.11 0.25
1.75 0.01
25.89 11.75
177.79 176.73
408.89 374.14
2.71 2.71
227.58 165.48
230.29 168.19
20.83 34.58
2.15 1.19
14.21 18.00
5.60 2.94
42.79 56.71
56.40 67.37
0.12 -
57.47 66.62
15.69 12.82
5.93 2.29
0.20 0.14
135.81 149.24
408.89 374.14

or and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
OLLO/METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED

VINAY G P‘I?/
Managing Diréctor

DIN : 00005149

Place: Ghaziabad
Date: June 30, 2020

e

SANJAY GUPTA
Director

DIN : 00233188




APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Particulars Notes
I Revenue from operations 22
IT Other income 23
III Total revenue (I +II)
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 24
(b) Purchase of stock-in-trade (traded goods)
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in- 25
progress, rejection and scrap
(d) Employee benefits expense 26
(e) Finance costs 27
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 28
(g) Other expenses 29
Total expenses
V Profit before tax (III - IV)
VI Tax expense:
(a) Current tax (net)
(b) Deferred tax (credit) / charge (net) 15
(c) Income tax expense of earlier year
Total tax expense 36

VII Profit for the year (V-VI)

VIII Other comprehensive income

Add : (less) items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation

(b) Income tax relating to above item

Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year

IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII)

X Earnings per equity share of Rupees 10 each:

(a) Basic (in Rupees)
(b) Diluted (in Rupees)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

—

RASHIM TANDON
Partner
Membership No. 95540

Place: New Delhi Chartered
Date: June 30, 2020 Z | Accountants

32

32

1-41

(Rupees in crore)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1,195.81 1,112.71
5.86 3.48
1,201.67 1,116.19
912.30 871.61
94.66 112.41
(25.09) (5.22)
22.87 16.55
12.33 8.80
13.73 7.26
94.22 60.56
1,125.02 1,071.97
76.65 44.22
17.91 11.69
(3.73) 3.68
0.18 -
14.37 15.37
62.29 28.85
(0.25) 0.02
0.06 (0.01)
(0.19) 0.01
62.10 28.86
229.74 106.42
229.74 106.42

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
APPDLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED

¢ (P ul
SANIJAY GUPTA

Director
DIN : 00233188

Place: Ghaziabad
Date: June 30, 2020




APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

A. Equity share capital

Particulars

Opening balance as at April 1, 2018

Changes during the year ended March 31, 2019
Balance as at March 31, 2019

Changes during the year ended March 31, 2020
Balance as at March 31, 2020

B. Other eauity

(Rupees in crore)

Amount

2.71

2,71

2.71

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Total

Securities General Surplus in

premium Reserve Statement of

profit and loss

Opening balance as at April 1, 2018 4.50 0.50 131.62 136.62
Profit for the year ended March 31, 2019 - - 28.85 28.85
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - = 0.01 0.01
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 28.86 28.86
Balance as at March 31, 2019 4.50 0.50 160.48 165.48
Profit for the year ended March 31, 2020 - - 62.29 62.29
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax < - (0.19) (0.19)
Total comprehensive income for the year - = 62.10 62.10
Balance as at March 31, 2020 4.50 0.50 222.58 227.58
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-41

In terms of our report attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

—

RABHIM TANDON
Partner
Membership No. 95540

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 30, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
APQOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED

| 77
VINAY GUPYA SANJAY GUPTA
Managing Wireefor Director

DIN : 00005149 DIN : 00233188

Place: Ghaziabad
Date: June 30, 2020




APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
(Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Finance costs
Bad debts written off
Net unrealized foreign exchange (gain)
Share based expenses (income)
Derivatives measured at fair value through profit & loss account
Provision for slow moving inventory of spares & consumables
Government grant income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:

Inventories
Trade receivables
Current loans and other financial assets
Non-current loans and other financial assets
Other current assets
Other non-current assets

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Other non current liabilities
Current provisions
Other financial liabilities
Non-current provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash flow from / (used in) /operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment (including capital advances)

In margin money with maturity more than 12 months at inception

Proceed from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of non-current borrowings

Proceeds from non-current borrowings

Proceeds from current borrowings

Repayment of current borrowings

Finance costs

Net cash (used in) / flow from financing activities (C)

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beqinning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Net Cash and cash equivalents (as defined in Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements)
included in note 8

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

——

RASHIM TANDON
Partner
Membership No. 95540

Chartered

Place: New Delhi Accountants

Date: June 30, 2020

76.65

13.73
(0.19)
12.33
0.06
(0.82)
(0.07)
1.33

(1.62)

101.40

(20.42)
36.02

(1.54)
0.29

(14.56)
0.35

(9.02)
3.48
2.66

(0.20)

0.96

44.22

7.26
0.86
8.80
0.13

0.27

0.01
(1.68)

99.42
(18.62)

59.87

(7.09)
(51.60)
(0.14)
(1.05)
(9.32)
(19.30)

43.16
(0.40)
2.27
0.13
(0.14)
0.40

80.80

(51.23)
(0.33)
1.72

16.79
(20.31)

(49.84)

(8.90)

(10.97)
(10.94)

(3.52)

(69.44)

1.02

(68.42)

(2.92)
42.50
37.64

(7.03)

(30.81)
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70.19
(1.75)

1.87

0.12
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Company backaround

Apollo Metalex Private Limited ("the Company"}) is a non-goverment private company limited by shares The company was incorporated on 20 February, 2006 in India The
Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of APL Apollo Tubes Limited (the Holding Company) and is engaged in the business of production of ERW steel tubes. The Company
has two manufacturing units at Sikanderabad, Uttar Pradesh,

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for 1ssue on June 30, 2020

Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied
consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements

Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015, as amended from time to time as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, the relevant provision of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act")

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use
in Ind AS 36

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Use of estimates and critical accountina judaements

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources, The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised and future periods affected.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements.

Deferred Income tax assets and liabilities
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits.

The amount of total deferred tax assets could change if estimates of projected future taxable income or if tax regulations undergo a change.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary differences can be realized. The Company estimates deferred tax
assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, including management’s expectations regarding the manner and timing of
recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax charge
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which
may be subject to significant uncertainty.

Therefore, the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the
tax charae in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of PPE at the end of each reporting period. The factors such as changes in the expected level of usage,
technological developments and product life-cycle, could significantly impact the economic useful lives and the residuat values of these assets. Consequently, the future
depreciation charge could be revised and thereby could have an impact on the profit of the future years.

Defined henafit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation ('DBO’) are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates, Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of derivative and other financial Instrume

The fair value of financial instruments, that are not traded in an active market, is determined by using valuation techniques. This involves significant judgements in selection
of a method in making assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the Balance Sheet date and in identifying the most appropriate estimate of fair
value when a wide range of fair value measurements are possible.

Estimation of uncertainties refating to the alobal health lemic from COVID-19
The Company had closed all its manufacturing plants and offices with effect from March 24, 2020 following countrywide lockdown due to Covid-19, All the plants and office of
the Company have resumed operations gradually over a period of time adhering to the safety norms prescribed by the Government of India.

The Company has assessed the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on its business operations and has considered relevant internal and external information available up to the
date of approval of these financial statements, in determination of the recoverability and carrying value of property, plant and equipment, inventories, and trade receivables.
Based on current estimates, the Company expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. Further, the management believes that there may not be significant
impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the financial position and performance of the Company, in the long-term. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material
changes to future economic conditions.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of 23sets and thair realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company
has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements fur the year ended March 31, 2020

{e) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are oresented in Indian rupee (INR}, which is functional and presentation currency

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses)

(F) Revenue recoanition
The revenue is recoanised once the entity satisfied that the performance obligation & control are transferred to the customers

(i) Sale of goods
The Company derives revenue from Sale of Goods and revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods. To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five step approach: (1) identify the
contract with a customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Any change in scope or price is considered as a contract modification. The Company accounts for modifications to existing contracts by assessing whether the services added
are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price

The Company accounts for variable considerations like, volume discounts, rebates and pricing incentives to customers as reduction of revenue on a systematic and rational
basis over the period of the contract. The Company estimates an amount of such variable consideration using expected value method or the single most likely amount in a
range of possible consideration depending on which method better predicts the amount of consideration to which we may be entitled.

Revenues are shown net of allowances/ returns, goods and services tax and applicable discounts and allowances.

In contracts where the Company acts as an aaent, the revenue is recorded at the net amount that the Companv retains for its services.

(i} Interest Income
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis. by reference to the orincinle outstandina and the effective interest rate abplicable

(iii} Commission Income
Commission income is recoanised when the servies are rendered.

(q) Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with.

Government grants related to assets are presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and is recognised in the Statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the expected useful life of the related assets.

The grant which is received to compensate the import cost of assets subject to an export obligation as prescribed in the export promotion capital goods scheme is recognised
as income in the statement of profit and loss linked to fulfilment of associated export obligations.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as government grant, measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair
value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates and are presented in the balance sheet as deferred income.

(h) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each year adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation Is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only If it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temoorarv differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legaily enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to
the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in Other Comprehensive Income . In this case,
the tax is also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income,

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid where applicable in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in
the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. MAT is recognised as deferred tax assets in the Balance Sheet when the asset can be measured reliably
and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised,

mn Leases

As a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (*ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options
when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the Initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

is are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. F
wﬂrﬁqnt testing, the recoverable amount (l.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset bg

5 é!\l-or en assels are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the undarlying =
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doe! 'E‘I‘F bEnerate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets.

inbility is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using tﬁ'eﬁ?t rc rat; IIr::l ‘—|
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

As a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating
lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease

(i) Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date ,the Company reviews the carrying values of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order
to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any).Where the assets does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the highest of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so
that the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash
generating unit) in prior years.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents and Cash Flow Statement

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents inciudes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance Sheet

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available
information

Short term borrowings, repayments and advances having maturity of three months or less, are shown as net in cash flow statement.
) Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress, stores, traded and finished goods
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (First in First Out -FIFO basis) and the net realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered
necessary. Cost includes cost of purchase, all charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale, including indirect levies, transit insurance and receiving charges. Finished
goods include appropriate proportion of overheads and, where applicable.

Cost of inventories also inciude all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Rejection and scrap
Rejection and scrap are valued at net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale

{m) Property, plant and equipment and Capltal work-In-progress

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Cost is inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition or construction. All upgradation / enhancements are charged off as revenue
expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional benefits. An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit or Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Projects under which property, plant and equipment are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and
attributable interest,

Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalised and depreciated over the useful
life of the principal item of the relevant assets.

The Company has a policy of capitalizing insurance spares having value more than or equal to Rupees 0.01 crore.

Property, plant and equipment acquired in business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrylng
value or recognised as a separate assets as appropriate only when it is possible that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Company.

Capltal work-In-progress
Projects under which tangible fixed assets are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidenta! expenses and attributable
interest.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed In Schedute II to the Companies Act,
2013 except in the case of the certain categories of assets, in whose case the fife of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into account
the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.

The estimated useful life of various property, plant and equipment is as under:-
(a) Buildings- 10 to 60 years

(b) Roads- 10 years

(c) Plant and machinery used in manufacturing of pipe-10 to 20 years

) Other plant and machinery- 2 to 10 years

shicles- 8 years

rll'[ure and fixtures- 10 years

uipment- 2-5 years
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|
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the yaar ended March 31, 2020
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on straight line method as follows:
(a) Computer software - 3 to 6 years

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortisation period are reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortisation period is revised to reflect
the changed pattern, if any

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangibles assets recognised as on April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as its deemed cost as of transition date

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to
equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of
the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity, compensated absences and performance incentives.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees

render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the fiabilities are settled, The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:
(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future compensated absences; and

{b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

Other long-term ployee benefit obligation:

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
sarvice, They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or
loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after
the reoortina period. recardless of when the actual settlement Is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

Defined contribution plans: The Company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount
of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans: For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Past
service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise Is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the
benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration pald, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes
g d on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the
IN bmgd-ne?rlls;tg{ issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.
: W\
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred
Financial instruments - initial recognition, subsequent measurement and impairment

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

Investments and other financial assets
Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
- those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income
The classification criteria of the Company for debt and equity instruments is provided as under:

(a) Debt instruments

Depending upon the business model of the Company, debt instruments can be classified under following categories:
- Debt instruments measured at amortised cost

- Debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

- Debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
(b) Equity Instruments

The equity instruments can be classified as:
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL')
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI')

Equity instruments and derivatives are normally measured at FVTPL. However, on initial recognition, an entity may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to present in OCI the subsequent changes in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument within the scope of Ind AS -109.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the
statement of profit or loss,

Debt Instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective Interest rate
method.

Falr value through other comprehensive Income: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included In other income using the effective interest rate method.

Falr value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and presented net in the statement of profit and ioss within other gains/(losses) in the period In which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income.

Investment In equity shares

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses} on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 39 details how the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recoanised from initial recoanition of the receivables.

Exp!cked cmdll loss are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to the following:
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairmenl loss allowance on Lrade receivable. Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track
chanaes in credit rick Rather it recoanizes impairment loss allewance based on lifetime ECLs at each reoortina date. right from initial recoonition

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed

default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimales. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed

Individual receivables which are known to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount of trade receivable and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss within other expenses.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to other income
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

- the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially ali risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In
such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised
to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Financial Liabilities

Classification
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

FInancial liabilities measured at falr value through profit or loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading. At initial recognition, such financial fiabilities are recognised at fair value.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are, at each reporting date, measured at fair value with all the changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities measured at Amortized Cost :
At initial recognition, all financial liabilities other than fair valued through profit and loss are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs that are attributable to the
issue of financial liability. Transaction costs of financial liability carried at fair value through profit or loss is expensed in the statement of profit or loss.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the financial liabilities using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down,

De-recognltion of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in the statement of nrofit or lnss as ather income ar finance costs

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of defauit, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Derivative financial iInstruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end of each period. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

Segment information

The Company is engaged in the business of production of ERW steel tubes. As the Company's business activity primarily falls within a single business and geographical
segment i,e manufacture of steel tubes, there are no disclosures required to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on 'Segment Reporting'.

Recent Accounting Developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from
April 1, 2020
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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Intangible assets

Gross carrying value
Opening balance as at April 1, 2018
Additions

Sales during the year

Balance at March 31, 2019
Additions

Sales during the year

Balance at March 31, 2020

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance as at April 1, 2018
Adjusted during the year

Depreciation expense

Balance at March 31, 2019

Adjusted during the year

Depreciation expense

Balance at March 31, 2020

Net carrying value

Opening balance as at April 1, 2018
Additions

Sales during the year

Depreciation expense

Balance at March 31, 2019
Additions

Sales during the year

Depreciation expense

Balance at March 31, 2020

Other financial assets (Non-current)
(Unsecured, considered good)

_ (Rupees in crore)
Computer Software

0.01

0.01

0.01

0.01

(Rupees in crore)

As at

Particulars March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Claim receivable = 0.11
Value added tax (VAT) credit receivable - 0.18
Security deposit 2.74 2.74
In margin money with maturity more than 12 months at inception 0.33 -

Total 3.07 3.03

Non-current tax assets (net)

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars As at As at
March 31. 2020 March 21. 2019

Advance income tax (net of provision as at March 31, 2020 Rupees 17.98 crore March 31, 2019 Rupees 50.95 1.19 0.66

crore)

Total 1.19 0.66

Other non-current assets
{Unsecured, considered good)

(Rupees in crore)

As at

Particulars March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Capital advances 1.21 3.41
Prepaid expenses 0.03 -
Prepaid lease payments = 23.88
Payment under protest

(i) Value added tax 0.44 0.65
(ii) Excise duty 0.03 0.20
Total 1.71 28.14

Inventories

(Rupees in crore)

. As at As at
L March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Raw material (including stock-in-transit) 23.21 30.00
Work in progress (including stock-in-transit) 29.56 9.66
Finished goods (including stock-in-transit) 23.97 19.04
Stores and spares 5.13 3.01
Rejection and scrap (including stock-in-transit) 1.12 0.86
Total 82.99 62.57
Notes :

Cost of inventory recognised as expense during the year amounted to Rupees 995.13 crore (March 31, 2019 : Rupees 986.87 crore).
Deal of stock-in-transit /‘/—‘ 'A-_L‘:: ‘!‘ N ) 081
3 atefipl /a0 9 .
progress’ </ 4 5.06 -
Sited goods ™. (§)\) (o <\ 289 12.18
j ck{'.'pln and scraps | DELH‘ =] 0.33 0.26
o~ harlered | — )\ ~
! ﬁ\FJwﬁlfsltiuq.léf inventories has been stated in note 1(ii)(l) of significant accounting policies. OO;“\ /,O“y
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(a)

(b)

(i)

Trade receivables (Current)
(Unsecured)

(Rupees in crare)

Particulars

Considered good

(i) Related parties

(ii) Other than related parties
Sub total

Considered doubtful
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance)
Sub total

Total

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

0.05 48.38
66.73 53.65
66.78 102.03

0.19 0.13
(0.19) (0.13)
66.78 102.03

The average credit period on sale of goods is 0-60 days. Interest of Rs 0.20 crore is charged on the trade receivables for the amount overdue above the
credit period. There are no customers who represent more than 10% of the total balance of trade receivables except as follows :

{Rupees in crore)

As at

Particulars March 31, 2020
Customer A 9.80
Customer B 7.75
Customer C 7.32
24.87
% of total trade receivables 37.24%

(Rupees in crore)

: As at
Particulars March 31, 2019
Customer A 48.38

48.38
% of total trade receivables 47.42%

In determining the allowance for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss

(1) Movements in expected credit losses allowance of receivables are as below :

{Rupees in crore)

Year ended March Year ended March

Particulars 21,2020 31, 2010
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.13 ~
Charge in statement of profit and loss 0.06 0.13
Balance at the end of the year 0.19 0.13

(2) Ageing of trade receivables and credit risk arising there from is as below :

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

Allowance for Net credit risk

credit losses

Gross credit risk

Amounts not yet due

0-90 days overdue

91-180 days overdue
181-270 days overdue
271-365 days overdue

More than 365 days overdue

48.16 - 48.16

18.58 - 18.58
0.04 - 0.04
.19 0.19 -

66.97 0.19 66.78

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

Gross credit risk Allowance for Net credit risk

Amounts not yet due
0-90 days overdue
91-180 days overdue
181-270 days overdue
271-365 days overdue

credit losses
64.26 ] 64.26
37.62 7 37.62
0.11 - 0.11
0.04 < 0.04
0,13 0.13

102.16 0.13 102.03
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED

(3) Ageing wise % of expected credit loss

0-90 days overdue
91-180 days overdue
181-270 days overdue
271-365 days overdue

100 %

__(Rupees in crore)

More than 365 days overdue 100 %
Note :
There are no oustanding debts due from directors or other officers of the Company.
Cash and cash equivalents
{(Rupees in crore)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Cash on hand
Balances with banks - in current accounts
Total

Loans (Current)
(Unsecured, considered good)

0.02 0.02
0.25 0.10
0.27 0.12

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Loans to employees
Total

Other financial assets (Current)
(Unsecured, considered good)

0.11

0.25

0.11

0.25

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Claim receivables
Total

Other current assets
{Unsecured, considered good)

1.75

0.01

1.75

0.01

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid lease payments

Balances with government authorities:

(i) Goods and services tax (GST) credit receivable
Value added tax (VAT) credit receivable
Government grant:

(i} Export incentives

GST Refund Receivable

Advance to suppliers
Total

0.14 0.17
- 0.42
14.28 -
0.47 0.18
2.57 0.62
0.07 8.36
8.36 2.00
25.89 11.75
/AL
/o
fff




_ < Y-
F m.m...m“__mzmwymwm 1y Aq piay si aleys T Buuiewsal pue (Auedwo) Buipjoy) pajwi saqnl ojjody 1dv 243 Aq pjay a.1e sateys Aunba 660'1T/'Z ‘saseys Alinba 00T'TTL

‘aanReju

S0t 00T'1T'2T %007 00T°TT'LT LPoUWIT S8
\J VL s1ybB1l BUOA yilm saie 3
PIRY PIRY
Buipjoy o4 saleys 4o JaquinN 6uipjoy % saJeys Jo JaqunN JaployaJeys Jo swWweN
6T10T ‘TE Yoien 00T ‘1€ Udlen
je sy je sy

-1S24BYS 9, G uey} aJ0w Buipjoy J1apjoyaieys yoed Aq p|9Y sdleys Jo s|ielaq

‘BuipjoyaJeys Jiays 01 uorpodold uj ‘syunowe jenuaJaead |je Jo uoingasip Jee Auedwo) ay) Jo s}asse Bululewsa. ay3 aa12234 03 9|qIbI[9 aJe siapjoyadeys
Alnba ay] ‘uoiepinbi| JO JUSAS 2y3 U Py aJeys Jad 3j0A BUO 104 3|qIBIR SI 1opjoyaleys yoe3g ‘yoes 0T saadny Jo =anjea Jed e Buiaey saieys A3nba yo ssepd auo sey Auedwod ayl

soseys A3inbs 031 payde)e SUOoIIDIIISD] PUB SIIUIRYDId ‘SIYBRY

142 ILT 00T'TTLE 001’1142 JeaA ay) Jo pud dy3 je buipueising
- - - - J1eaA au3 buunp panss] ppy
14T 14°C 00T'TT'L2 00T'TT'LC JeaA ay3 jo Buluulbaq ay3 e Bulpueisino
|eaided aseys Ayinbg
(24045 ul saadny) (241010 u1 seadny)
6T0T ‘1€ YdIen 02T0¢ ‘T€ YdieW 6TOT ‘TE YaieW 0202 ‘1€ Yyoien
je sy je sy je sy je sy
junowy saleys jo JoquinN sie|noiped
! 6102 ‘IE Y4B pue gZ0T ‘TE Y21eW 3e se Buipuejsino junowe pue saleys jJo Jaquunu a3y} Jo uonej|iduoday
TL'T 00T'TT'LZ LT 00T‘TTLZ
12T 00T'TT'LT 14T 00T'TT'LT S3yb BuROA yum yoes T seadny Jo saleys Ajinbg
TLT 00T'TT’LZ LT 00T’‘TT’LT
(VA4 00T'TT'LC 14T 00T°TT2C s1ybp1 6unoA yum yoes gt seadny o saleys Aynbg
Te3ideé> panssI
00°€ 000'00'0€E 00’€ 000°00°0€
00°€ 000°00°0€ 00'E 000700'0E s1yb1 Bunoa yum yoes 0T seadny Jo saseys Aynb3
Jejided auaeys A3inbz
Aunb3
junowy saJeys jo IaquinN junowy saleys jo laqunN
sie|ndiyed
6TOC ‘TE Ydie| je sy 0Z0T ‘T€ Yd4e| 1e sy

(pa3e3s asimiayjo dooxa ‘a.4042 ul seadny)

0Z0Z ‘1€ Yolde popud IeaA oyj J0j SjuUaWIaIe]}s [eIdUeUl) oL3 03 S930N
A3LINIT LVAIRId X3TVLINW OT110dVY

(©)

(@

(M

(u)

()

m

(e)zt

(41



£8°02

£8'0¢ (mo)aqg (1) 230U 298) s ()
sjueq wod4 -
IURO WIS (e)

4 i
mﬁowpmﬁ.mm<:u._mz ONoNam.nM<:u._m_>_ siejmiped

(21045 u1 saadny)

(3us41n>-uopN) sbuimo.iog €T

*AJ2411UB Ul B]qRINGIISIP J0U BJ1e dAa0ge papiodal sjunowe
a4l ‘snyl "€107 ‘v seluedwo) a2yl Jo sjuswalinbal ay3 BulISpISUOD paUILLISISP S! SI19p|oyaleys Aunba s31 01 spuapiAlp se Auedwo) ay3 AQ paINquUIsIp 89 ued eyl junowe ayl (A1)

‘UOIINQLIISIP 10J S[qe|IeAR SI SWeS 2y | "AuedwoD a3 4o s3yoid paIngulsip-un/pajedojieun sjuasaidal 3] :ss0] pue Jyoad jo Juswaiels ul snidins (1)

‘pUBPIAIP 23nqgIsIip Auedwo) swl AISAS SAISSY |BI3USD) 0} palidjsuel)
2Qq 01 paJdinbal sem junowe ulRYAD ‘Py ssjuedwo) ay) Jad sy ‘uonRNqgIISIp Joj s|ge|leAe Auedwon ayj Jo syjoud 9913 Y3 SIUDSDIda] SDAIISAI [RISUSD DAIDSAI |elaudn (1)

"(,ov seluedwo) ayy,)
€T0Z ‘1Y SoluedwoD) oY) JO SUOISIACId Y} UM SDUBRPIODDE Ul Pas||iIN S| SAISSDI YL ‘SIJBYS JO SNSS! U0 Wnjwald 33 plodal 0} pasn sl wnjwald so13idn9s : wnwald sanundads (1)

81°69T 85°/4¢2 lejol
8v°09T 8S'ZTIT 1e2A 33 Jo pud ayj je dduejeg
98°'8¢ 0T'29 1B3A 3U3 104 SWOdU| SAISUSY1dWOD |RYO] PPV
Z9'1¢T 87091 1eaA 3y3 jo bujuuibaq ay3 ie adueleg
sso| pue jjo.d jo Juswajels ul snjdins (g)
0s'0 0s'0 JeaA ay) Jo pus ayj 1e souejeg
- = $S0| pue jio.d jo Juawalels ul sn|dins woly paJidjsuel) ppy
0S'0 0S50 1e2A a3 jo bujuuibaq ayj 1e souejeg
CYSELCERI-AEITETS) ()
0s'v oSt 1eaA ayj Jo pua auj je douejeg
= - 1eadA ay3 bulinp suoluppyY :ppy
0s'v 0S¥ l1eaA ayj Jo buluuibaq ay) je souejeqd
wniwa.ld Ajlndos (1)
8t°'G9T LS°LTC 1ejol
8v°09T 8G°C¢CC Sso| pue 11jo4d Jo juswalels ul sn|dinsg
050 0s'0 EYNEECTRI-IETIEDS)
0S'v 0S'v winiwaud A4ndas
610C ‘1€ Yalen 0202 ‘1€ Yyotew
e sy 1e sy sie[ndiyed

(31040 ul saadny)
Aynba 1ayio  (q)zt

0Z0Z "TI€ YyoieW popua Jeak ayj 10j Sjualuale}s [BIdUBUl) 943 03 S910N
G3LINIT ILVAINd X3ITVLIINW OT70dY



\ ™3 L.f...
[ANBT TN ST'C
~ oo\ SP'T (v€ @0u
=( wea )5 0L'0 s32u35qe
(@] -\ pasmspeyn
$T£ yosew 0Z0Z ‘1€ Yd1en | ,mo/\ﬂ%m.: €
fted
S sy 1@ sy /% SuS

(21010 ul se2dny)

€6°L 8S°VE 84°CT £8°0C
00'S 00°0¢ 00's 00'ST
. - 8L°L £8'S
£6'¢C 85 VT = -
sbuimouloq sbuimo.loq sbuimo.ioq sbuimo.lioq

jus.4ind-uou jo

jua.lind uoN
s9131Ne Y JUBLIND

jusJtand-uou jo

jU2.4Nd UON
S91IIINJRW JUDIIND)

610T ‘TE Y21en 3e sy

020T ‘TE Yoien e sy

(3us.1In2-UON) SUOISIAOAd

jejol

"% SZ'6 - %S0°6 S| 352433U| Jo 2184 3ig2d||ddy
‘yoea $24010 G7'T $39dny Jo $70Z AeW ul Bulpua pue 0zZ0Z ‘unt wouly BuuaWWod
sjuaw|eIsul Aapenb gz ul ajgededas st jep J9ays oue|eq je se bulpueisiro ueo
oyl ‘paawi] saqny ojjody Tdy JO 93juesenb ajesodsod pue eidn Aeuip i pue
e1dno Aefues Jjy 243 Jo saajuelnb |suosiad AQ pasndas Jayuny ale sau3l|ioe) 3paJd
Auedwod a4y Jo SISsSe JuaLINd 2in3ny pue juasald 24iud ay3y uo abieyd puodss
AQ pain2as J3yuny SJe soi|Io.) UPaJD "pPeqelepuels ‘ealy [BHISNpUl ‘ZZ 'ON 30id
pue peqelepueiS ‘ealy |elISNpUl ‘GZ-¥ pue dn ‘peqelepueils ‘esly |elISNpul
‘7-y 1 pajenuis Auedwod ayi JO S)J9SSe pPaxl 9|GRAOWIW] pue 3|qeAow aininj
pue jussaud au)3ud uo abieyd nssed led 3sily AQ paindes a1e SIl|IDe) UROT WISL

"% 00°6 - %008 S! 152491ut Jo 33el 3|qedijddy "yoea
salo1d 6T seadny Jo TZ0Z 49qoQ ul Bulpus pue gzog |Wdy wouy Eupuswiwod
sjuawiesul Allaxenb g uy ajgeAedas si a3ep 393ys aouejeq je se buipueisino ueot
oyl ‘payiwi sagny ojjody 1dy Jjo @9juesenb ajesodiod pue eydng AeUIA U pue
eidno Aefues 1 ay3 Jo seajuelnb |jpuosiad Ag padndas Jayuny ale saijijide) Ipatd
‘Auedwon) 2y3 JO SI9SSE JUIJIND 2un3ny pue judsald 241U Syl uo ab64eyd puodss
AQ pa4n2as Jaynny aJe saljijidoe) YpaJLD ‘peqesepueyiS ‘ealy |euisnpul ‘gz "oN 30|d
pue peqelepueil§ ‘ealy [BLISNpUl ‘SZ-Y PUB dN ‘peqelepuediS ‘ealy |elIsnpul
‘2-y e pajenys Auedwod 9yl JO SI9SSE paxly I|geAoww] pue sjqeAow a4niny
pue juasaid aJi3us uo abieyo nssed wed 3siy AQ paInNdas le S3IN|IDBS UROT WIS]

‘% 00°6 Sl 3sadajul Jo
a1e4 9|qediddy "yoes sa104d /60 seadny Jo £Z0Z 42qo12Q ul Buipus pue 6107 ANt
wody Bupuawwod sjusweisul Aluapenb gT ul sjqeAedsd siI a1ep Joays adue|eq je se
Buipue}sino ueoT By pajiWI] sagn ) ojjody 1dy jo a3juedenb ajesodiod pue eydno
AeUIA 'ys g eadno Aefues 'ys jo aajuelnb |puostad AQ palndas Joyuny aie salj|ioey
3pal) ‘Auedwo) Syl Jo s}asse ualnd (aininy pue juasaid) sinus uo 2bleyd
nssed 1ied puodss pue dn ‘deyespueing ‘peqelepuryiS ‘ealy |enisnpu] ‘gz 'oN 30|d
pue §z-v ‘z-v 18 pajeniis Auedwo) 2y Jo (3|geAowll) pue 3|geAOW) S33sSe paxiy
24nmn) pue jussald 243U uo abueyd nssed-lied sy AQ padndas 24e UeOT WIS

iSMO0]|04 SB Paindas ale syueq wody ueo] wad] (1)

0Z0Z ‘1€ YoiE POpUD JEaA oY) J0j SjULLIIe}S [eIdUeUl) 9] 03 S910N
A3LINWIT JLVAIYd X3TVLIKW O110dVY

(D
(e)

14}



(s0°0) (e£g) 00'8T
90’0 £T'0 S0
900 800 S0
S0°0
= (09'€) S¥'8T lezol
- = 60°0 150D uoIDeSuUeRl} JO uolilen|ep Jied
(09°¢) 9¢°8T syosse a|qibueiul Jsyio pue syuswdinbs pue jue|d ‘Ansdold
(v) s=iigel] Xey padlajda
Quwodul
aaisuayasdwod
0zo0z 1830 sso| 3 1j04d 6T0C ‘T 11dy 3e se

‘1€ ydiep 3e sy

u1 pasiubooay

ul pasiubooay

aouejeq Bujuado

19sse / senijiqel] Xe} palidep Ul JUSWIAOK

(a@-v - 319N) sanIqel] xe3 paiiayed

00°8T 10'0 89°'E TE'PT
S0 (10°0) 8T'0 sZ'0 lejol
S0 (10'0) 8T°0 8¢C°0 sasuadxa Juyauag aaA0|dwa 10} UOISIAOL]
(g) s1osse xe} pallajaq
S¥°8T = 98'€E 6S'PT jejol
60°0 - c0°0 £0°0 1S0D uol3oeSsuURL} JO uonen|eA Jdied
9¢'8T . 8¢ [4 A8 sjasse a|gibuejul Jayio pue syuswdinbs pue jueld ‘Ajsdoid
(v) sennqel) xej pailajag

awodul
aAlIsuayaldwod
610C 19330 sso| g yjoad 810¢ ‘T I11dy 3e se

‘1€ Yyslep je sy

ul pasiubod>ay

uj pasiubooay

23uejeq 6uiuadQ

19sse / sanjijiqel] Xe} paliajop Ul JUSWSAONW

00°'8T %1
sv'o ¥9°0
Sy0 650
S0°0
S¥'8T S8'1T
600 60°0
9¢€'81 9L b1

(8-V - 32N) sailljiqel] Xe} palidjap se pasopsid

(g) s1osse xe) palldjop [ej0L
sasuadxa Jiyouaq asAojdwd 104 UOISIACLd
192 |naAgnoq 104 UOISIACLd

JO JUNOD2E U0 S)9SSY Xel padlajaq

(v) senljiqe]] xe) paiiajap [ej0L

(sueo| UO 350D Uo|eSURI]) SIBSSY |elIDURUIS -

syasse a|qibuejul Jayjo pue sjuswdinba pue jue|d ‘Apedodd -
JO JUNoOdoe UOo Sapil|Iqel] Xel palisseg

6T0C ‘TE Y24e|W
je sy

0202 ‘T€ Yalenw
e sy

sie|noiped

(21040 Ul seadny)

-: 2B S2131|IqRI| PUR S}9SSE Xe} Pa1i9)ap J0 Jusuodwo)d

(3su) senIqer xe) paiidjeq

(a)

(n

n

(e)

ST

020T 'IE Yyoliep papua Jeak oY) 10§ SJusLWIa}e]s [elDURUl} 9y} 0] SOI0N

Q3LINIT ALVAIId X3TVLIIW OT10dV



16

(a)

17

(a)

(@

18

(a)
(b)

19

(a)
(b)
()
(d)
(e)

20

(a)
(b}
(c)

21

(a)
(b)

APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Other non-current liabilites
(Rupees in crore)

) As at As at
Particulars - March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Deferred income (see note below} 5.60 2.94

5.60 2,94
Note :

Deferred income arises in respect of import of capital goods without payment of custom duty under Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (See note 33(b)(2)).

Borrowings (Current)
(Rupees in crore)

5 As at As at
Bacticulams - March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Loan repayable on demand
- From banks (secured)

(i) Workina cavital facilities (see note (i) below) 56.40 67.37
Total 56.40 67.37_

Note :

Working capital facilities from banks are secured by first pari passu charge on entire present and future current assets and second pari passu charge on entire present and
future movable and immovable property, plant and equipment of the Company situated at A-2, Industrial Area, Sikandarabad, UP and A-25, Industrial Area, Sikandarabad,
UP. Credit facilities are further secured by personal gurantees of the Mr. Sanjay Gupta and Mr. Vinay Gupta and corporate guarantee of APL Apollo Tubes Limited (the
Holding Company).

Trade payables (Current) ¢
Rupees in crore)

- As at As at
Harcias March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.12 .
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 57.47 66.62
Total 57.59 66.62

The amount due to Micro and small enterprises as defined in “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development act, 2006" has been determined to the extent such
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as below:

(Rupees in crore)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year 0.12 -

(ii) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year & -
(i) The amount of interest-due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid by beyond the o -
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act

(iv) The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid at the end of the year - -

(v) The amount of interest remaining due and payable to suppliers disallowable as deductible expenditure under Income Tax - -
Act, 1961

Other financial liabilities (Current)
(Rupees in crore)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (See note 13) 12.78 7.93
Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment 0.72 3.23
Retention money payable 0.61 1.50
Derivative liabilities 1.33 N
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.25 0.16
15.69 12.82

Other current liabilities

- {Rupees in crore)

A As at As at
Barticulars March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Statutory remittances 0.46 0.83
Advance from customers 5.15 1.30
Deferred income (see note below) 0.32 0.16
Total 5.93 2.29
Note :

Deferred income arises in respect of import of capital goods without payment of custom duty under Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (See note 33(b)(2)).

Provisions (Current) N
(Rupees in crore
Lrore] —

Particulars Asiat Asiat

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision for compensated absences 0.10 0.07
Provision for gratuity (see note 34) 0.10 0.07
Total TR 0.20 0.14




APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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Revenue from operations

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

(Rupees in crore)
Year ended
March 31, 2019

Sale of products (see note (i) below) 1,158 23 1,080.06
Other operating revenue (see note (ii) below) 37.58 32.65
Total 1,195.81 1,112.71
Notes :
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price :

. (Rupees in crore)
particul Year ended Year ended

articulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Contract price 1,194.05 1,096.57
Adjustments for:
Discount & Incentives (35.82) (16.51)
Revenue from operations 1,158.23 1,080.06
Other operating revenue comprises
Sale of scrap 34.32 30.81
Export incentive 3.26 1.84
Total 37.58 32.65

Other income

{(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Gain on foreign currency transactions {net)

Interest income (see note no 34)

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Others

Total

Cost of material consumed

2.65 1.69
0.69 0.03
0.19 =

2.33 1.76
5.86 3.48

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Inventories of raw materials as at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Inventories of raw materials as at the end of the year
Total

Change in inventories

30.00 28.91
905.51 872.70
23.21 30.00
912.30 B71.61

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods

Work in progress

Rejection and scrap

Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods

Work in progress

Rejection and scrap

Total

Employee benefits expense

23.97 19.04
29.56 9.66
1.12 0.86
54,65 29.56
19.04 23.85
9.66
0.86 0.49
29.56 24.34
(25.09) (5.22)

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

Year ended

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident fund

Gratuity expense (see note 34)

Share-based payments to employees {see note 3i(b))
Staff welfare expenses

Total

21.09 15.02
0.90 0.49
0.49 0.27
(0.07) 0.27
0.46 0.50

22.87 16.55

During the year, the Company recognised an amount of Rupees 2.15 crore (Year ended March 31, 2019 Rupees 2.37 crore) as
remuneration to key managerial personnel. The details of such remuneration is as below :

(1) Short term employee benefits
(Ii) bost-employment benefits
i gﬁ}qm Jang term employee benefits

Charterad _’_'II
;@mlanis (2]

2,15 2.35
- 0.01
- 0.01
2.15 2.37




APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

27 Finance costs
R (Rupees in crore)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Tnterest expense | T
(i) working capital facilities 8.46 7.69
(ii) term loan 3.55 0.54
(iii) vehicle loan 0.01 0.01
(iv) delayed payment of income tax 0.08 0.35
(b) Other borrowing cost 0.23 0.21
Total 12.33 ~8.80
28 Depreciation
- {Rupees in crore)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (see note 2(a)) 13.31 7.26
(b) Depreciation on Right to use assets (see note 40) 0.42 -
13.73 7.26
29 Other expenses
(Rupees in crore)
. Year ended Year ended
D March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(a) Consumption of stores and spare parts 13.27 8.07
(b) Furnace oil expenses 8.73 5.86
(c) Power and fuel 16.95 10.78
(d) Job work charges - 1.73
(e) Security charges 0.61 0.49
(f) Rent including lease rentals - 0.27
(q) Repair and maintenance:
(i) Building 0.33 0.19
(ii) Plant and machinery 1.21 0.71
(iii) Others 0.03 0.04
(h) Rates and taxes 0.16 0.17
(i) Travelling and conveyance 1.22 0.85
) Legal and professional charges (see note (i) below) 0.84 0.55
(k) Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) = 0.86
) Freight outward 36.91 22.70
(m) Provision for slow moving inventory of spares & consumables - 0.01
(n} Advertising and sales promotion 0.14 0.29
(0) Derivatives measured at fair value through profit & loss account 1.33 -
(p) Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (expected credit loss allowance) 0.06 0.13
(q) Insurance 0.10 0.08
(rn Miscellaneous expenses 1.14 0.49
(s) Management support services 11.19 6.29
Total 94.22 60.56
Note :-
() Legal & professional charges include auditor's remuneration (excluding indirect taxes) as follows :
(a) To statutory auditors
For audit 0.18 0.15
For other services 0.02 0.02
Total 0.20 0.17
(b) To cost auditors for cost audit 0.01 0.01
Total 0.01 0.01

30 Corporate social responsibility

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules therein, the Company is required to spend at least 2% of average net profit of
past three years towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Detalls of CSR Expenditure as required by the Management are as

follows :
{Rupees in crore)
: Year ended Year ended

L March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 1.00 0.85
Amount spent during the year on purposes other than construction / acquisition of N z
any asset
Amount spent for acquisition / construction of assets - -

31 Allocation of common expenses

(a) During the year, the parent Company has charged back the common expenses incurred by it on behalf of group companies on cost i.e.

cost to cost basis. The allocation of common expenses has been carried out on the basis of turnover of respectlve companies, as per
latest financial statements / results.

(b) The employees of the Company covered under APL Apollo Tubes Limited (Holding Company) "Employee Stock Option Scheme 2015"
(ESOS 2015) are granted an option to purchase shares of holding Company in accordance with the terms and conditlons of the scheme
as approved by shareholders from time to time. Each Option entitles the holder thereof to apply for and be allotted One Orumq\rhflhz
of holding Company of Rupees 10.00 each upon payment of the exercise price during the exerclse period. /

_" ’ /)

~————_-_ The Options have been granted at the ‘market price’ as defined from time to time under the erstwhile Securities and E{Tg’nge Board ofy &~

India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and Securities and fxg| pnqg&q_}d]or —
,‘1nd|'| (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014. The fair value of the options granted is determined using|thé wack Scholeg/ o
@ptian Pricing model at the grant date. ON

Accountants | Th
Th fatr value of options granted is recognized as employee benefits expense, net of relmbursements, if any. The total cost rProgmzed
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Earnings per Equity share

The following table reflects the profit and shares data used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

(Rupees in_crore, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2020 31, 2019

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic and 62.29 28.85
diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic 27,11,100 27,11,100
and diluted earnings per share

(@) Basic earnings per share in Rupees 229.74 106.42
(b) Diluted earnings per share in Rupees 229.74 106.42

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Contingent liabilities (for pending litigations)
Disputed claims/levies in respect of sales tax:

- Reversal of input tax credit 0.63 3.04

- Classification of goods 0.36 0.36

- Provisional assessment 0.63 0.66
1.62 4.06

Disputed claims/levies in respect of excise duty:

- Availability of input credit 10.28 10.71

- Demand on clearance of goods 0.38 0.03
10.66 10.74

Contribution to provident fund under the Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous - =
provisions Act, 1952 (see note (ii) below)

During the year, the Company has discounted the sales bill from the banks for Rupees Nil crore (March 31, 2019 Rupees 0.65 crore).

Based upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, there are various interpretation issues and thus management is in the
process of evaluating the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgement in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the
definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the purpose of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees
Provident Fund & Miscellaneous provisions Act, 1952. Pending issuance of guidelines by the regulatory authorities on the application of
this ruling, the impact on the Company, if any, can not be ascertained.

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and
disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these
proceedings to have a materially effect on its financial statements.

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

(i) Property, plant and equipment 1.83 20.53

The Company has obtained EPCG (Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme) licenses for importing the capital goods without payment of
basic custom duty against submission of bonds.

The export obligatlon is to be fulfilled within a period of 6 years from the date of issuance of license. Under this scheme, the Company has
to achieve FOB value of exports which will be 6 times of duty saved. Accordingly the Company is required to export goods of FOB Value of
Rupees 12.60 crore (March 31, 2019 Rupees 18.17 crore) against which the Company has saved a duty of Rupees 2.10 crore (March 31,
2019 Rupees 3.03 crore).

The Company has other commitments, for purchase orders which are issued after considering requirements per operating cycle for

purchase of services, employee’s benefits. The Company does not have any long term commitments or material non-cancellable
contractual commitments/contracts, including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

’rer_'were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
LY 4 kil

evlered
untants |
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
___Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Employee benefit obligations
(Rupees in crore})

As at March 31, 2020

P_artlculars | Current Non-current Total |
Gratuity
Present value of abligation 0.10 1.45 1.55
Total employee benefit obligations R 0.10 1.45 1.55
(Rupees in crore)
: | As at March 31, 2019
Ranticulars | Current [ Non-current | Total |
Gratuity
Present value of obligation 0.07 0.76 0.83
Total employee benefit obligations 0.07 0.76 0.83

Defined benefit plans

a) Gratuity

The Company has an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement/death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed
year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months subject to a limit of Rupees 0.20 crore. Vesting occurs upon completion of 5 years of
service.

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the schemes, the
Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised Rupees 0.90 crore
(Year ended March 31, 2019 Rupees 0.49 crore) for Provident Fund contributions in the statement of profit and loss. The contributions payable
to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount
contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

Movement of defined benefit obligation:

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

{Rupees in crore)
Particulars .
Gratuity
Opening balance as at April 1, 2018 0.60
Current service cost 0.22
Interest expense/(income) 0.05
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 0.26
Remeasurements
-Loss due to experience adijustments (0.02)
-effect of change in financial assumptions (0.01)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (0.03)
Emplover contributions : Benefit payments (0.01)
Balance as at March 31, 2019 0.83
Balance as at March 31, 2019 0.83
Current service cost 0.43
Interest expense/(income) 0.06
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 0.49
Remeasurements
-Loss due to experience adjustments -
-effect of change in financial assumptions 0.25
-Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.25
Employer contributions : Benefit payments (0.02)
e as-at March 31, 2020 1.55
Helavs R
U
©
O\
Vi )
DELHI ).—1 |
\ ~

I".G !




APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(d)

(1)

(2)

(e)

(f

(a)

Post-Emplovment benefits

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

" Year ended March 31,
Particulars

Year ended March 31,

o 2020 2019
Discount rate 6.77% 7.82%
Salary growth rate 8.00% 8.00%
Expected Return on Assets .
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14

Mortality

Attrition Rate

18 to 30 years 3.00%
30 to 45 vears 2.00%
Above 45 years 1.00%

Notes :

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Indian Government Securities as at Balance Sheet date
obligation.

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality 2006-08

3.00%
2.00%
1.00%

for the estimated term of

The estimate of future salary increase considered in acturial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant

factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to chanages in the weiaghted principal assumptions is :

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2020 2019

Gratuitv

Discount rate (increase by 1%) (0.24) (0.12)

Salary growth rate (increase by 1%) 0.30 0.15

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2020 2019

Gratuity

Discount rate (decrease by 1%) 0.31 0.15

Salary growth rate (decrease by 1%) (0.24) (0.12)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
significant actuarial assumptions the same method i.e. projected unit credit method has been applied as that used for calculating the defined
benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Risk exposure
The defined benefit obligations have the undermentioned risk exposures :

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined
benefit obligation will tend to increase.

Salary inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal,
disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the
combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria.

Defined benefit liabilitvy and emplover contributions
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 19.53 years (March 2019 : 19.68 years ).
The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

(Rupees in crore)

Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,

Particulars

2020 2019

Less than a vear 0.10 0.07
Between 1 - 2 vears 0.02 0.01
Between 2 - 3 vears 0.04 0.02
Between 3 - 4 vears 0.05 0.04
Between 4 - 5 vears 0.20 0.05
Bevond S-years 1.06 0.75

A > 1.47 0.94
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 _

Related party transactions
Details of related parties:
(i) Holding Company

(ii) Fellow subsidiaries

(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
transactions have taken place during the year)

(with  whom

(iv) Enterprises significantly influenced by KMP and their
relatives (with whom transactions have taken place during
the year)

Transactions during the year

Name of related parties
APL Apollo Tubes Limited

Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited

Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited w.e.f June 17, 2019

APL Apollo Buildings Private Limited
APL Apollo Tubes FZE
Blue Ocean Projects Private Limited

Mr. Vinay Gupta (Managing Director)
Mr. Sanjay Gupta (Director)

Mr, Rajeev Kohli (Chief Executive Officer) (till September 30, 2019)

Apallo Pipes Limited

Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited (till June 16, 2019)

APL Infrastructure Private Limited

(Rupees in crore)

Key Management Relatives of

Enterprises significantly

Particulars Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries Personnel (KMP) KMP "‘"uﬁ?:i:‘:;::\:lz and Total
Purchase of stock-in-trade (net of discounts)
APL Apollo Tubes Limited 7.95 . - . = 7.95
(22.38) ) () () () (22.38)
7.95 - # = - 7.95
(22.38) ) ) -) ) (22.38)
Purchase of raw material (net of discounts)
APL Apollo Tubes Limited 54.90 & - d 54.90
(28.08) ) ) ) () (28.08)
Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited N 11.15 - B = 11.15
) -} ) ) (0.04) (0.04)
Apollo Pipes Limited N = - N 1.83 1.83
(-1 (-) (-) () (1.58) (1.58)
54.90 11.15 - - 1.83 67.88
(28.08) ) ) (-) (1.62) (29.70)
Sale of goods (net of discounts)
APL Apollo Tubes Limited 322.93 - - - - 322,93
(307.08) ) ) ) () (307.08)
Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited - 44,28 . - 0.13 44.41
) ) ) ) ) )
Apollo Pipes Limited - - - - -
() ) ) ) (0.01) (0.01)
Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited - 1.22 . - - 1.22
(-) (0.24) ) ) () (0.24)
322.93 45.50 - - 0.13 368.56
(307.08) (0.24) (-} ) (0.01) (307.33)
Sale of scrap
APL Apollo Tubes Limited 13.04 - - - - 13.04
(13.25) ) ) -) ) (13.25)
Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited - 0.01 - - = 0.01
) ) ) ) ) )
Apollo Pipes Limited - - - 0.01 0.01
() _() () () (-) ()
13.04 0.01 - - 0.01 13.06
(13.25) -) ) ) ) (13.25)
Purchase of scrap
APL Apollo Tubes Limited 0.71 - - N 0.71
(0.12) ) ) ) () (0.12)
0.71 - - - - 0.71
(0.12) -) () ) () (0.12)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
APL Apollo Tubes Limlited 0.77 - - - - 0.77
(0.13) ) ) (-) ) (0.13)
Apollo Pipes Limited - = = = = =
(-) (-) (-) (-) (0.02) (0.02)
0.77 - - - - 0.77
(0.13) ) -) () (0.02) (0.15)
Sale of property, plant and equipment
APL Apollo Tubes Limited - - - -
(0.49) ) ) ) ) (0.49)
Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited - - - - - -
) (0.04) ) ) ) (0.04)
Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited - 1.79 - - - 1.79
) (-) ) ) (5.17) (5.17)
- 1.79 o - = 1.79
(0.49) (0.04) ) ) (5.17) (5.70)
Salary
Mr. Vinay Gupta - - 1.80 - - 1.80
) ) (1.80) ) ) (1.00)
Mr. Rajeey Kahll - = 0.35 - 0.35
S =) =) (8.57) (=} L) {0.57)
oW1l z = 2.15 = ZTALA 2.15
= -) -) (2.37) ) / "o JE, (2.37)
e A
s = {
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

Interest Expense
APL Apollo Tubes Limited

Interest Income
Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited

Sale of licences
Apollo Pipes Limited

Rent Income
APL Apolio Tubes timited

Allocation of share based expense
APL Apollo Tubes Limited

Allocation of common expenses
APL Apollo Tubes Limited

Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited

Key Management

(Rupees in crore)

Relatives of

Enterprises significantly

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries Personnel (KMP) KMP influenced by KMP and Total
their relatives
023 - - 0.23
() ) ) ) (-) ()
0.23 N = - - 0.23
-) (-) ) (-) ) (-)
= 0.20 = - = 0.20
) () - {=) {-) (-} = ;g
- 0.20 = - - .
(-) ) ) Q)] ) )
() (-) (-) (-) (0.09) (0.09)
) ) ) ) (0.09) (0.09)
0.17 E = = = 0.17
=) (-) () (-) (-) (=)
0.17 - = - = 0.17
-} ) ) ) ) )
(0.07) - - - - (0.07)
{Lﬂ-ﬂl?; =) (=) =) (-) {g}‘;‘;‘;
.07 - - - - ¥
(0.27) ) ) ) ) (0.27)
10.83 = - = - 10.83
(6.29) () ) ) ) (6.29)
] .36 - - - 0.36
(=) () ) () () = ig)
10.83 0.36 = E - 5
(6.29) (Q) ) -) ) (6.29)

Balances outstanding at the end of the year

(Rupees in crore)

Key Management

Relatives of

Enterprises significantly

Particulars Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries Personnel (KMP) KMP influenced by l_(MP and Total
their relatives
Trade payable
Apollo Pipes Limited - - - - 0.05 0.05
) ) ) ) (0.15) (0.15)
Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited - - - - - =
Q) (0.15) () () (=) {0.15)
- - - - 0.05 0.06
(-) (0.15) ) (-) (0.15) (0.30)
Advance from customer
APL Apollo Tubes Limited .84 - - - . .84
() ) () () ) ()
4.84 - - - B 4.84
-) ) -) -) ) -)
Expense payable
Shri Lakshmi Metal Udyog Limited - 0.39 - - 0.39
) -) ) ) ) (-)
APL Apollo Tubes Limited 13.77 - - - - 13.77
(2.33) ) (-} ) ) (2.33)
Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited = 0.18 - . - 0.18
(-] (-} () {) =) - (-]
13.77 0.57 - ™ - 14.34
(2.33) ) ) -) ) (2.33)
Claim receivables
APL Apollo Tubes Limited 1.25 - - - - 1.25
) ) ) ) ) )
Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited - 0.44 = . 3 0.44
() (-} () () ) ()
1.25 0.44 - - - 1.69
) ) ) ) ) )
Trade receivables
APL Apollo Tubes Limited - - - - - .
(48.38) Q) (-) ) ) (48.38)
Apollo Tricoat Tubes Limited - 0.05 “ - - 0.05
(-) (-) () ) ) (-)
- 0.05 S - - 0.05
(48.38) ) ) () - (48.38)
Advance to supplier
APL Infrastructure Private Limlted - - - - - s
(-) () () ) (0.01) __(0.01)
) -) ) ) “L?FﬂLé‘ (0.01)
/&
Notes : . ey g
Amount of expe éq(atmw. and compensated absences is taken on actuarial basis. -
= 4 J : l
‘ . ME
APL Apollo Ti itad, the holding Company has also given corporate guarantee for term loan and other credit facilities taken by the Colﬂ_puq ‘fro%ﬁ!lntj. ( ,:1 te 13 and
17 for credit

ities

w | Chartered
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(@)

Income tax expense

The reconciliation of estimated income tax to income tax expense is as below :-
o (Rupees in crore)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Particulars

Profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss 76.65 44.22
Income tax expenses calculated as per tax rates of Income tax act of 25.168% (March 31, 2019 : 34.608%) 16.29 15.25
(i) Income exempt from tax / items not deductible (0.07) 0.12
(ii) Reversal of deferred tax liabilities as at March 31, 2019 (see note below) (5.04)

(iii) Income Tax of earlier year 0.18 -
Tax expense as reported 14.37 15.37

Note:

The Company has during the year elected to be assessed at lower tax rate of 25.17% (inclusive of surcharge and cess) under section 115BAA of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019. The impact of this change is included in deferred tax credit for year ended
March 31, 2020. This change has resulted in reversal of deferred tax expense of Rupees 5.04 crores on account of remeasurement of deferred tax liability as
at March 31, 2019.

Fair value measurements

The following tables presents the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

(Rupees in crore)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost
Financial assets - Non Current
Value added tax (VAT) credit receivable - = 0.18
Claim receivables - - - 0.11
Security deposit - 2.74 L 2.74
In margin money with maturity more than 12 months at inception - 0.33 = =
Financial assets - Current
Loans to employees - 0.11 - 0.25
Trade receivables - 66.78 = 102.03
Claim receivables - 1.75 - 0.01
Cash and cash equivalents - 0.27 = 0,12
Total financial assets - 71.98 = 105.43
Financial liabilities-Non Current
Borrowings - 20.83 = 34,58
Financial liabilities-Current
Borrowings - 69.18 = 75.30
Derivate liabilities 1.33 B - =
Trade payable E 58.92 : 71.35
Others - 0.25 = 0.16
Total financial liabilities 1.33 149.18 = 181.39

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured
at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standard.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments that have quoted price. The
fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all slgnificant inputs required to fair vaiue an Instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the slgnificant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity securities, security deposits included in level 3.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
All the financial asset and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, carrying value is an approximation of thelr respective fair value.

Financial risk management objectives

The Company's activities expose it to market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk :

The Company'’s risk management is carried out by a treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors, Company Treasury Department
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Company’s operating units. The board provides principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as hedging of foreign currency transactions foreign exchange risk.

Market risk

qfifuidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements can not be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy,
Chartered |
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Foreian currency risk

The Company's functional currency in Indian Rupees (INR). The Company undertakes transactions denominated in the foreign currencies; consequently,
exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Volatility in exchange rates affects the Company’s revenue from export markets and the costs of imports,
primarily in relation to raw material. The Company is exposed to exchange rate risk under its trade and debt portfolio.

Adverse movements in the exchange rate between the Rupee and any relevant foreign currency result's in the increase in the Company's overall debt
positions in Rupee terms without the Company having incurred additional debt and favourable movements in the exchange rates will conversely result
inreduction in the Company's receivable in foreign currency. In order to hedge exchange rate risk, the Company has a policy to hedge cash flows up to a
specific tenure using forward exchange contracts and options. At any point in time, the Company hedges its estimated foreign currency exposure in
respect of forecast sales over the following 6 months. In respect of imports and other payables, the Company hedges its payable as when the exposure
arises.

Details of derivative instruments and unhedaed foreian currencv exposure :-

Outstanding forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company as on 31 March, 2020 :

As at March 31, As at March 31,

Forward contract outstanding Buy/Sell 2020 2019
In USD Sell 50,00,000
Equivalent amount in Rupees in crore Sell 37.70 -

The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedqed by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:

As at March 31, As at March 31,

Cungency 2020 2019
Receivables:

uUsp 23.69.944 6.33,537
Eauivalent amount in Rupees in crore 17.87 3.98
EURO 75,978 98.413
Eauivalent amount in Rupees in crore 0.63 0.76
Pavables

usD 39,646

Eauivalent amount in Rupees in crore 0.30 2

Advance paid to vendors:

uso - 2,75,078
Eauivalent amount in Rupees in crore - 1.90
EURO = 32,529
Eauivalent amount in Rubees in crore = 0.27
Sensitivity

If INR is depreciated or appreciated by 2.5% vis-s-a-vis foreign currency, the impact thereof on the profit and loss of the Company are given below:

Particulars Impact on profit after tax

Year ended March Year ended March

31,2020 31, 2019

USD sensitivity
INR/USD Increases by 2.50% (March 31, 2019 - 2.50%) 0.33 0.06
INR/USD Decreases by 2.50% (March 31, 2019 - 2.50%) (0.33) (0.06)
EURO sensitivity
INR/EURO Increases by 2.50% (March 31, 2019 - 2.50%) 0.01 0.01
INR/EURO Decreases by 2.50% (March 31, 2019 - 2.50%) (0.01) (0.01})

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the
cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in rupees and US dollars with a mix
of fixed and floating rates of interest. The Company hedges its US dollar interest rate risk through interest rate swaps to reduce the floating interest rate
risk. The Company has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in base lending rate and LIBOR rates. The Company uses a mix of
interest rate sensitive financlal Instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations like non-convertlble bonds and
short term loans. The risk Is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowlngs, and by the use of
interest rate swap contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate vlews and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-
effective hedging strategies are applied.

(Rupees in crore)

G As at As at
P.
articulars > March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Variable rate borrowings 90.01 67.37
Fixed rate borrowings - 42.51
Total borrowings 90.01 109.88

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had the following variable rate borrowings outstanding:

Particulars Balatice % of total foans
As at March 31, 2020
Bank overdrafts, bank loans, Cash Credit 90.01 100%

As at March 31, 2019
Bank overtrafts, bank leans, Cash Credit 67.37 61%
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APOLLO METALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates
(Rupees in Crore)
Impact on profit after tax
Year ended March Year ended March

Particulars

1, 207 31,2019
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis points (50 bps) (0.34) (0.22)
Interest rates - decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps) 0.34 0.22

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises when a counter party defaults on contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.

Company's trade receivables are generally categories into following categories:
1. Export customers

2. Institutional custormners

3. Dealers

In case of export sales, in order to mitigate credit risk, generally sales are made on advance payment terms. Where export sales are not made on
advance payment terms, the same are secured through letter of credit or bank guarantee, etc.

In case of sale to institutional customers certain credit period is allowed. In order to mitigate credit risk, majority of the sales are secured by letter of
credit, bank guarantee, post dated cheques, etc.

In case of sale to dealers certain credit period is allowed. In order to mitigate credit risk, majority of the sales made to dealers are secured by way of
post dated cheques (PDC).

Further, Company has an ongoing credit evaluation process in respect of customers who are allowed credit period.

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are more than 30 days past due.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision ~ Trade receivables
(Rupees in crore)

Opening balance as on April 1, 2018 =

Charge in statement of profit and loss 0.13
Utilised during the year =
Allowance for credit loss on March 31, 2019 0.13
Charge in statement of profit and loss 0.06
Utilised during the year -
Allowance for credit loss on March 31, 2020 0.19

Included in revenues arising from direct sales of goods of Rupees 1,158.23 crore (March 31, 2019 : Rupees 1,080.06 crore) (see note 22(a)) are
revenues of approximately of Rupees 343.37 crore (March 31, 2019 : Rupees 320.81 crore) which arose from sales to the Company's largest customer.
No other single customers contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for both 2019-20 and 2018-19.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Company has a liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term sources of funding vis-a-vis short
term and long term utilization requirement, This is monitored through a rolling forecast showing the expected net cash flow, likely availability of cash and
cash equivalents, and available undrawn borrowing facilities.

(i) Financing arrandements: The position of undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of reporting period are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Floating rate 58.60 47.63

Nature of facility Working Capital Working Capital
(i) Maturities of financial liabilities :
The table below analyses the Company’s all non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:
(Rupees in crore)

Not later than 1 year Betweveﬂnﬂiand B Later than 5 years Total
Non-derivatives
As at March 31, 2020
Borrowings 69.18 20.83 = 90.01
Trade pavable 58.92 - - 58.92
Others 0.25 - = 0.25
Total non-derivative liabilities 128.35 20.83 - 149.18
Non-derivatives
As at March 31, 2019
Borrowinas 67.37 7.93 34.58 105.88
Trade pavable 71.35 - - 71.35
Others 0.16 - - 0.16
Total non-derivative liabilities 138.88 7.93 34.58 181.39
39 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
(Rupees in crore)

Particulars Opening balance as at Net Cash flows Non-cash changes- As at

April 1, 2018 foreign exchange March 31, 2019

movement

Non-current borrowings 1.40 33.18 - 34.58
Current borrowings 29,73 37.64 - 67.37
Cutrent maluiities of non-cunent buiiuvwings 1.53 6.40 - 7.9)
Total liabilities from financing activities 32.66 77.22 - 109.88

20 Sk (Particulars
o

T ‘_

As at
March 31, 2019

Net Cash flows

(Rupees in crore)

Non-cash changes- - Ay ',!tg_ BN

foreign exchange March 31; 2020 ‘
movement f = N
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(a)

Transition to Ind AS - 116

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified
retrospective method and has taken the eumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the
standard had been applied since the commencement date of the lease. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively
adjusted.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of Rs. 23.88 crore. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the

profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash
outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2020 :

Particulars Category of ROU
Asset
Land

Total

Balance as at April 1, 2019 -
Reclassified on adoption of Ind AS 116 24.30 24.30
Additions - -
Deletions = :
Depreciation (0.42) {0.42)

Balance as at March 31, 2020 23.88 23.88

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Above ROU assets have been pledged as security for term loans taken as at March 31, 2020. See note 13 and 17 for loans taken against which these assets are
pledged.

Capital management

Risk management

The Company being in a capital intensive industry, its objective is to maintain a strong credit rating healthy capital ratios and establish a capital structure that would
maximise the return to stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and equity.

The Company's capital requirement is mainly to fund its capacity expansion, repayment of principal and interest on its borrowings and strategic acquisitions. The
principal source of funding of the Company has been, and is expected to continue to be, cash generated from its operations supplemented by funding from bank
borrowings and the capital markets. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversify its debt profile, reduce interest cost and elongate the maturity of its debt
portfolio, and closely monitors its judicious allocation amongst competing capital expansion projects and strategic acquisitions, to capture market opportunities at
minimum risk.

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents, Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.

{Rupees in crore)

Particulars asar —
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Non-current borrowings 20.83 34.58
Current maturities of non-current borrowings 12.78 7.93
Current borrowings 56.40 67.37
Less: Cash and cash equlvalents (0.27) (0.12)
Total Debts 89.74 109.76
Total Equity 230.29 168.19
Gearing Ratio 0.39 0.65

Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Company that are managed as capital.

Fol pnd on hehalf of the Board of Directors
APCLLO MEFALEX PRIVATE LIMITED
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